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The Priory Federation of Academies

Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2024

Trustees’ Report

The Trustess present their annual report, together with the financial statements and auditor’s report of the
charitable company for the period 1 September 2023 1o 31 August 2024, The annual report serves the purposes of
bath a Trusbees” report, and a directors” report under company law,

The Trust eperates thirteen academies; five secondary, six primary (one of which joined during the neporting period),
ane all-through and one spedal all-through, with a combined roll of 8,556 in the school census on 3 October 2024,

Structure, Governance and Management

Constltution

The Trust is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The charitable company’s memorandum and
artiches of association are the primary governing documents of the Trust. The Trustees of The Priory Federation of
Academies are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law. The charitable
Company operates as The Priory Federation of Academies.

Details of the Trustees who served during the year, and to the date these accounts are approved, are included in the
Reference and Administrative Detalls on page 2.

Members' Liability

Each Member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in the
event of it being wound up while they are a Member, or within one year after they cease to be a Member, such
amount as may be required, not exceeding E10, for the debts and labilities contracted before they ceased to be a
Membear.

Trustees' Indermnities
The Trust is 3 member of the Department for Education’s Risk Protection Arrangement (RPA), The RPA Administrator
will subject to the definitions, extensions, exclusions and conditions of the Rules indemnify the Trust in respect of
losses arising as a result of indeminifying an indemnified person in accordance with its legal obligations, Tor loss
arising from claims made against the indemnified person, during a membership year. The RPA Administrator's limit
of liability in respect of each academy shall be £10,000,000 each and every loss and shall be the maximum aggregate
liability of the RPA Administrator from all losses from an academy whose Acadermy Trust is a member during any
one membership year.
An indemmnified person is:
i} Any Governor or any Member of the governing body or board of governors of the Trust andfor any
repreésentative acting solely on behalf of an indemnified person.
il) Any Employee of the member whilst acting in @ managerial capacity with regard to the overall operation of
thie educational establishment.
i) any Employee who is named as a co-defendant in respect of a claim made against a Governor,

Method of Recruitment and Appointment or Election of Trustees
Trustees are appointed in accordance with the Trust's Memorandum and Articles of Association.
The number of Trustees shall be not bess than three, and the Trust shall have the following Trusiess
i} Upto five Trustees appointed by the Members and
iiy I appointed before the end of February 2022, up to seven Trustess appointed by the then Sponsor, The
Priory Fundraksing Trust.
i) In addition, Trustees may appoint co-opted Trustees,
A minimum of twa Parent Governors sit on each local governing body.

Policles and Procedures Adopted for the Induction and Training of Trustees

All new Trustees are provided with access to appropriate DFE guidance and the Trust's own governance handbook
[The Priory Handbook). In addition, a Trustee tralning workshop is arranged at [2ast once per year,
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The Priory Federation of Academies

Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2024

Trustees’ Report (continued)

Organisational Structure

A5 at 31st August 2024, The Priory Federation of Academies consisted of five secondary academies (The Priory
Academy L35T, The Priory City of Lincoln Academy, The Priory Ruskin Academy, The Priory Belvoir Academy and The
Priory Pembroke Academy), one all-through academy (The Pricry Witham Academy), six primary acadernies (Ling
Moor Primary Academy, Heighington Millfield Primary Academy, Huntingtower Community Primary Academy,
Waddington Redwood Frimary Acadermy, Chenry Willingham Primary Academy and 5t Johns Primary Academy) and
one all-threugh special academy (Willoughby Academy),

As specified in the Memarandum of Association, The Priory Federation of Academies is responsible for all academies
ifi the Trust

The Trustees of The Priory Federation of Academies may delegate to a committee, to any Trustee holding executive
office, to the Chief Executive, or to the Heads of Academy, such of thelr powers or functions as they consider to be
desirabde to be exercised by them.

Comrittees of The Priory Federation of Academics are known as Trust committees. Separate local advisory
committees known as Local Governing Bodies have been appointed for each of the academies.

& representative from a Local Governing Body is, subject to an assessment of appropriate skill-sets, nominated by
Members of the Trust to become a Trustee.

A Trust Governance Development Group, chaired by the Chief Executive Dfficer (CEQ) of the Trust, provides a link
between the Trust Board, members of the Senior Leadership Team and the individual academies.

Thee Accounting Officer is the CEOQ of the Trust.

Amrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel

The Trust poléicy for Teachers” pay {up to and including Headveachers) follows closely the requirements of the Schoal
Teachers' Pay and Conditions Document [STPCD), including the salary scales and reference points for the Main,
Upper and Leadership scales, Pay progression is dependent upon a successful annual appraisal,

The job rales of the key nan-teaching staff have been externally evaluated by The Hay Group and this data is being
used o ensure that pay is appropriate for each senior position. Again, pay progrission is dependent on a successful
appraisal. Appraisals for the Headteachers and key non-teaching staff are managed by the CEQ and moderated with
an external consultant, The CEQYs appraisal is carried out by the Pay Performance and HR committes, again
supported by an external consultant. In addition, annual benchmarking against similar Multh Acadermy Trusts is
carried out in respect of the CEQ's pay.

Trade union facility time
Relevant union officials
Humber of employees who were relevant union officials
during the relevant period Full time equivalent emploves number
11 104
Percentage of time spent on facility time S
Percentage of time rumber of employess
0% i
1% 50% 7
51% - 99% .
100%: H
Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time
| Total cost of facility time £15,227 .62
] Total pay bill £431.2m
| % spent on facility time 0.035%
Paid trade union activities

There was no expenditure on paid trade union activities
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The Priory Federation of Academies

Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2024
Trustees’ Report (continued)

Related Parties and other Connected Charities and Organisations
There are no other charities or arganisations connected to the Trust.

Engagement with employees (including disabled persons)

Throughout the year, the Trust malntained regular, appropriate, and proportionate communication with all
emplovees. The Trust-wide newsletter, The Priory Stor, highlights collaborative efforts, achievements, and
organisational developments, The content of the Priory Stor is varied and has, this year, included extensive articles
argund Equality, Diversity and Inclusion, the nine protected characteristics and \Wellbeing.

The HR and Finance departments continue 1o advance the development of the Trust’s software system, enabling
employes “sell-service™ access to persanal pay, holiday, absence, and performance management records. This has
been further developed this year to include access to onfine overtime claims.

HR Business partners conduct scheduled drop-in sessions a1 each academy, offering opportunities for employees to
discuss various topics, including return to work, pensions, and their wellbeing. Sites also conduct their own
witllbaing-related activities, such as staff wellbeing days and awareness initiatives.

The Strategic Wellbeing Group has devised, consulted on and distributed a Trust Wellbeing Strategy which helps
guide the development of the Wellbeing function, integrating its goals into each Academy's Development Plan, This
aligns with a "You Said, We Did” approach, reflecting a commitment to fostering a healthy work environment and
enhancing the guality of work life for staff. Wellbeing champions, appointed across all our academies and central
teams, provide guidance to staff on avallable support and rescurces, and contribute insights to the Strategic
Wellbeing Group, helping identify trends, needs, and wellbeing ssues, Comprehensive training in areas such as
mental health first aid training, men’s mental health, sleep, nutrition, seff-reflection, resilience, and stress
minagement is prosided 1o the champion, The champions have input into which areas of development they nead
for them to carry out their role.

Employee wellbeing |s primarily assessed through an annual stafl survey, which evaluates aspects such as a sense of
belonging, everall wellbeing, and areas for erganisational improvement. Feedback from these surveys is actioned in
line with the "You 5aid, We Did™ approach. Last year, the Trust used an internal survey to gather feedback from staff,
highlighting areas such as cover for absent colleagues, commaunication, wellbelng, and workioad, resulting In actions
now underway in response to these concerns.

The Equality, Diversity and Incusien Strategic Group has devised, consulted on, and distributed an EDH Strategy. The
Trust recognises the importance of Equality, Diversity, and Inclusion (EDN) within the organisation. The Trust's
Cdrector of Wellbeing, supported by an Equality and Diversity Champlon, ks responsible for the development and
implementation of EDI initiatives across the Trust, The role of the champion continues to grow, assisting sites with
understanding EDI and identifying future training needs.

The main develxpmants relating to EDI and Wellbeing this year were Wellbsing on a Page, ED on a Page and a Trust
Woellbelng Charter. The “on-a-page” elements are guidance for stafl as vo where they can find sdditional support
For all areas of Wellbeing and EDI. The Wellbeing Charter, which is being devised using the DFE's own Wellbeing
Charter, states: "The education staff wellbeing charter is a declaration of support for, and a set of commitments to,
the wellbeing and mental haalth of everyone working in education”.

Each academy within the Trust has a dedicated Accessibility Plan, outlining efforts to ensure an inclusive
environment, A commitment to equality of provision for all visitors, staff, and students is upheld, with active support
for the recrultment and retention of individuals with disabilities. Regular reviews and updates are made to each
acaderny’s Accessibility Plan, in collaboration with staff and students.
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The Priory Federation of Academies

Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2024

Trustees’ Report {continued)

Engagement with suppliers, customers and others in a business relationship with the trust

Within the Trust's Ethos, one of its guiding principles is the approach of Agile Partnering, where the Trust seeks to
identify and collaborate with colleagues and organisations that share the Trust's values, with the overarching mission
to enhance the educational outcomes and improve the life chances of pupils. This is evidenced in the Trust's
continuing collaboration with the Uincoln City Foundation on delivering a Sports BTEC, drawing on the expertise of
Lincoln City FC a5 an elite football acadeny.

The Trust recognises its responsibility as a custodian of public funds and is dedicated to ensuring value for money
and transparency in the deployment of these resources. As part of this, the Trust operabes a centralised procurement
team to facilitate an efficient and timely payment process for our suppliers and partners. The Trust's supgliers and
partners continue 1o benefit from this approach, with payments being made in a timely and consistent manner, as
demanstrated within our published payment practices reports.

Objectives and Activities

Objects and Alms
The principal object of the Trust, in ling with the Articles, i to advance for the public benefit education in the United
Kingdorn, by establishing and developing academies offering a broad and balanced curriculum,

The Mission statement is:
a) Toimprove the life chances of our students; and
b] To ensure that all students appreciate the excitement of learning, the rewards of personal challenge and
the importance of helping athers = and 5o become true citizens of the world.

Objectives, Strategles and Activities
The objectives are set out in the Trust's Vision, which is reviewed annually, published in full in The Priory Handbook
and used to inform the Trust's Development Plan:

1. Maximising Performance: Custodians of the Trust are aligned in approach, effective in decision making,
and work in the best interests of our pupils.

2.  Maximising Effectiveness: Colleagues feel valued, access quality development cpportunities, and consider
the Trust as an employer of first choice,

3. Maxmising Learning: Colleagues and pupils benefit from teaching, learning, and assessment framewaorks
that are used consistently, developed from best practice research, and provide powerful experiences
across the curricwlum.

4. Maximising Values: Pupils feel valued, make meaningful contributions, and become true ctizens of the
world.

5. Maximising Achievement: We all become more passionate, MonRe COUrAEROUS, MONeE enerous, more
curious, and a little wiser.

Public Bamefit
in setling objectives and planning the Trust's activities, Trustees have complied with their duty to have regard to the
guidance on public benefit published by the Charity Commission,

L To advance for the public benefit education in the city of Uncoln and the surrounding area incheding
Grantham, in particular but without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing by estimating,
maintaining, carrying on, managing and developing schools, offering a broad curriculum with a strong
emphasis on, but inno way limited to, either one or a combination of the specialisms. The specialisms are
The Priory Acaderny LS5T - Technology and Science; The Pricry Witham Academy - Performing Arts and
Busirness and Enterprise; The Priory City of Lincoln Academy — Sport; and The Priory Ruskin Academy =
Sport and Visual Arts,

2. To provide facilivies for recreational and other leisure time occupation for the community at large, in the
interests of social welfare and with the interest of improving the life of the said community.
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The Priory Federation of Academies

Fimancial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2024
Trustees” Report (continued)
Strategic Report

Achievernents and Performance
Theere is a clear strategic direction for the Pricry framed within the Mission: To improve fife chances; and the Motto:
"By the good deeds you do, you will be remembered in the stars for eternity.’

The Trust’s Vision Statement, which is reviewed each year, provides an overarching framewnork for the direction of
the Trust.

This direction is detailed within a Trust Development Plan that is monitored throughout the year by members of the
senior team and by Trustees,

Key Performance Indicators
Secondary Progress 8 I Attalnment B 4+ English & Maths | 5+ English & Maths
Bahvair 0.14 44,21 59 38
Lincola 0,66 34.19 47 25
LSST 015 54.80 80 60
Pembroke 0.02 41.23 58 42
Ruskin 0.22 41.27 _51 25
Witham 0,52 34.52 42 24
Primary Reading Writlng Maths R, Wr, M GPS
Exp Exp Exp Exp Exp
Chgrry 73 73 73 55 79
Heighingion E] Fi ) i1 [ 85
Huntingtower 71 L5 71 S0 81
HnE mioor ED iR 92 5 88
___Redwood 57 55 43 33 52
Witham BE [ 70 54 B8
5t lohns 76 ] 7h a5 Bl

School Centred Initial Teacher Tralning
The Trust’s School Centred Initial Teacher Training provision [SCITT) was successful in its bid for reaccreditation for
September 2024 and is working with stakeholders across the region to support iits trainees.

Post-16 Oifer
The Trust has developed a suite of A Level, T Leved, and Apprenticeships that can be accessed by all students across
thi Trust

Equal Opportunities Policy
The Trustees recognise that equal opportunities are an integral part of good practice within the workplace, The Trust
aims to maintain equal opportunity in all areas of its activities, including a working environment i which the
contribution and needs of all people are fully valued.
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The Priory Federation of Academies

Financial Statemaents for the Year Ended 31 August 2024

Trustees’ Report (continued)

Going Concern
After making appropriate enguiries, the Board of Trustees has a reasonable expectation that the Trust has adeguate

resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason it continues to adopt the
Eoing concern basis in preparing the financial statements. Further details regarding the adoption of the going
concern basis can be found in the Statement of Accounting Policies.

Promoting the success of the company

In accordance with section 172{1) of the Companies Act 2006, The Trustees hawe acted In the way in which they
consider, in good faith, most likely to promote the success of the Trust and to achieve its charitable purposes.
Prescribed in the Trust’s objects and aims, all key decisions during the year were made towanrd advancing these
charitable purposes.

In making key decisions, the long-term consequences are assessed and considered by Trustees, including the effect
on the long-term financial stability and restience of the Trust through maintenance of rolling five-year forecasts.
These decisions are taken with due regard for the interests of the Trust’s stakeholders. Details of how the Trust
engages with these key stakeholders to inform its own decision-making process are described further in the sections
within this report headed; Engagement with employees [including disabled persons) and Engagement with suppliers,
custormers and others in a business relationship with the Trust.

To maintain high standards of business conduct, the Trust operates a number of appropriate policies, including Anti-
Frawd, Corruption and Bribery, Business Travel and Expenses, Gifts and Hospitality and Whistleblowing, Each
acpdemic year, Trustees sign documents such as a Code of Conduct, Declaration of Eligibitity to Serve and Declaration
of Business Interests, affirming their commitment to probity and integrity.

All Members of the Trust are treated fairly and equally, with the same access to information, the ability to directhy
contact Trustees or the Executive,

Thiet Trust endeavours to reduce its impact on the environment and reduce its carban foolprint. These efforts are
described further under the section Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting, wherein it is demonstrated how the
Trust has continued to reduce s carbon emissions per pupil and implemented a Heat Becarbonbation ®an with the
ambition to be near carbon neutral by 2040,

Ini line with its commitment to robust assurance practices, Trustees initiated several internal audits throughout the
year, guided by the Trust's comprehensive risk management framework, These audits spanned a diverse range of
operational areas.

In response to the increasing risks caused by climate change and other external pressures, the Trust's Business
Continuity Planning was scrutinised, yielding a moderate assurance rating, underscoring the Trust's ongoing focus
on preparedness and resilience. With the secior experiencing difficulties with recruitment and retention of staff, an
assessment of the Absence Management processes received a rating of substantial assurance, reflecting the Trust's
robust management in this area. The Quality Assurance Framework, essential to maintaining high standards across
the Trust, also received substantial assurance, affirming the strength of controls in place,

A comprehensive review of Safeguarding also secured substantial assurance, demonstrating the Trust's dedication
to maintaining a safe environment for its students. Additionally, as part of the Trust's commitment to the risks
around cybersecurity, an dudit of Remote Access and Connectivity was completed, reinforcing the confidence in the
Trust's controls to protect against cyber risks.

These positive outcomes across high-priority areas highlight the Trust's effective internal controls and commitment
o |'.'|'.'I'I1:|I'I-1.ll.'.|IJ! mprovemeant,

Future audits will be strategically directed by the recommendations of the externally appointed Internal Auditor,

aligned with the ongoing review program, and informed by the insights of the Trust's Risk Register and Risk Appetite
Staterment.
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The Priory Federation of Academies

Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2024
Trustees’ Report (continued)

Financial Review

The majority of the Trust’s income is obtained from the Education and Skills Funding Agency [ESFA), an agent of the
Department for Education [DFE), In the form of recurrent grants, the use of which is restricted to particular purposes,
The grants received from the ESFA during the period ended 31 August 2024 and the associated expenditure are
shown as restricted funds in the Statement of Financial Activities.

The Trust also recelves grants for fixed assets from the DfE. In accordance with the Charities Statement of
Recommended Practice, ‘Accounting and Reporting by Charities” (SORP 2019), such grants are shown in the
Statement of Financial Activities as restricted income in the fixed asset fund, The restricted fixed asset fund balance
is reduced by annual depreciation charges over the expected useful life of the assets concerned.

Total income for the year was £73.3m and expenditure amounted to £70,.8m which resulted in a net inflow of funds
of £2.5m,

Total funds at 31 August 2024 are in surplus by £130.3m, made up of a surplus of £128 0Om restricted funds and
£2.3m unrestricted funds. The resiricted funds comprise E£119.6m restricted fixed asset fund, £7.9m restricted
operating funds and £0.5m endowment fund. Of the £119.6m within the restricted fived asset fund, £0.1m relates
to unspent capital grants and £119.5mm related to fixed assets whose value can only be realised on disposal,

Membership in the Local Government Pension Scheme [LGP3) is offered to all suppart staff in accordance with the
terms outlined in the Funding Agreement. The current value of the scheme shows a surplus, which has been subject
Lo an actuarial asset ceiling calculation, This measure s taken to ensure the scheme's value is accurately represented
and nol owverstated,

The Trust maintaing live financial plans for each academy over a rolling five-year period 1o ensure that academies
are able to maintain a viable long term financial position whilst continuing {o raise educational standards.

Reserves Policy

The Trust has established a policy that monitors and sets the level of reserves required over its combined five-year
plans to ensure sufficient working capital to cover delays between spending and receipt of grants and 1o provide a
contingency to deal with unexpected emergencies. Academies look to maintain a targeted level of reserves in fine
with the levels set within this policy, with a suggested level of 5% of GAG income. Where the levels of resenves fall
outside this range, plans are in place for their expenditure or recovery to the desired levels, There is also a
contingency reserve that is managed to suppeort those academies within the Trust with financial challenges and ta
maintain the overall reserves of the Trust at the desired policy levels, The contingency reserve should be no less
than 2.5% of GAG. When calculating the level of available contingency resenve, this figure is offset by the value of
cumulative deficits held at any academy. The combined level of all Trust reserves should be no greater than 20% of
total income.

On 31" August 2024, the contingency reserve (minus individual academy deficits) was £3.0m (2022: £3.0m) which
represents 6% of GAG income and within the minimum target level, The Trust overall held Restricted General Funds
of £7.9m (2022; £8.0m) and Unrestricted General Funds of £2.3m (2022 £2.1r), which is 14% of total income and
within the maximum target lewvel.

Investment Policy

The Trust holds and meonitors its cash balances centrally, Amounts not deemed to be required Immediately are
inveasted in zeng-risk fixed-term deposits with UK high street banks.
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The Priory Federation of Academies

Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2024

Trustees” Report (continued)

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Trustees are of the opinion that during the year, the Trust was operating an effective set of controls to manage risk
and implemented mitigation activitics where appropriate. The formal process around risk was regularly reviewed by
the Audit Committes and the outcomes presented to Trustees.

A consistent area of concern has been staffing, particularly challenges associated with recruitment and retention
within the education sector. The wellbeing of staff and the impact of workload demands are also areas the Trust i

proactively addressing, providing support and guidance in key areas.

The financial outlook for future academic years remains a concern, with significant pressures on the Local
Authorities’ High Meeds block. Funding in this area has not kept pace with the growth in expenditure, resulting in
the potential requirement to transfer funding from the core schools budget to support the growth in SEND.
Compounded by uncertainties over inflation, future pay awards, pension coniribution increases and high energy
corsts, educational budgets are expected to continue 1o face constraints,

Managing the risks around cybersecurity and the increasing cost of IT infrastructure and services are a priority for
thie Trust, with ongoing mitigation efforts and external reviews conducted to ensure rabust cybersecurity measures
are in place,

Despite the asset value presented from the latest LGPS accounting valuation, volatile financial markets mean the
Trust anticipates further increases to the necessary emplover contributions from both the Local Government
Pension and Teachers” Pension Schemes at the next fund valuations.

Student numbers are presented to the Finance Committee at each meeting and future trends and predictlons
reviewed to ensure that realistic estimates are used in the Trust's financial modelling.

Trustees are aware of the risks impacting on their responsibilities to ensure the Trust's estate is safe, well maintained
and complies with relevant regulations. Trustees have appointed individuals in central roles to support academies
in identifying and mitigating such risks.

During the academic year, the Trust managed the restoration and reoccupation of buildings at two of its Primary
Acadernies following significant fiooding in October 2023. The financial impact was mitigated by insurance coverage
and additional funding has been secured for flood defences to reduce the risk of future incidents. The Trust
efficiently reallocated building space across s other Academies during this period, ensuring minimal disruption to
students” education as the recovery projects were completed,

Fundraising

The Trust does not use any external fundralsers. The Trust's fundraising activities are limited to the letting of
premises and facilities for community use when not utilised for the Trust's educational purposes and from voluntary
contributions for educational visits. These activities form part of the Trust's charitable objectives as prescribed in its
Articles of Association,

Page 11 of 65



The Priory Federation of Academies

Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2024
Trustees’ Report (continued)

Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting
Durring the academic year, the Trust has been analysing the performance of the project completed in 2023 to install
12 air source heat pumps (ASHPs), 2 air handling units and an additional 14 solar arrays.

Despite the installation of the ASHPs and 5t Johns Academy joining the Trust, the annual electricity consumplion had
increased by only 57,774 EWh to 3,121,759 kWh. A significant achievement, brought about by the additional 14 solar
arrays instalied and the reductions in consumption as a result of the implementation of this project.

The annual solar generation was up 336,020 KWh from B78,480 kWh to 1,214,500 kWh equivalent to 40% of the
Trust's annual electricity consumption.

During the year there was a reduction of 13% in gas consumption, down from 7,710,967 kKWh to 6,705,742 kWh as
a result of the move to ASHPS, together with the installation of better heating controds and behaviours around energy

usage.

The praject |5 in line with the Trust’s Heat Decarbonisation Plan, where the aim i to be carbon neutral by 2040, The
Trust is making significant progress towards this aim, ilustrated by the fact that on certain days during the year,
each site was carbon neutral and in some instances carbon positive.

During the year, the Trust changed its waste collectar in an effort to further reduce its carbon foolprint. This has
resulved in a significant positive impact from the Trust's waste, with 35% recycled, 12% green waste and the
remainder repurposed for creating energy.

Az a result of the abowve, the Trust's net carbon energy density has again dropped:

UK Greenhouse gas emissions and energy use data for the | kg of COZe

period | 2023724 022/
Scope 1

Gas Consumption 1,225,893 1,410,602
Own Transport (minibuses and vans) £.963 9,520
Scope 2

Purchased Electricity a5, 062 634,472
Seope 3

Business Travel (employee owned vehicles) 22,250 21977
Contracted bus service to LS5T Academy 3,813 3,772
Total Gross Emissions 1,905,981 2,080,343
Renewable energy exported to grid (102,071) (65,059)
Energy savings due to processing of Trust waste [115,445) (28,000)
Total Net Emissions 1,688, 465 1,987,284
Owerall net carbon intensity 197 245
__[tntal net emissions kg CO2e/pupil}

The format of the table follows the guidance as given in the latest 2023/24 Academnies Direction on Energy and
Carbon reporting and uses the 2024 conversion factors as updated by the Department for Business, Energy and
industrial Strategy (BEIS). It should be noted that the conwversion factor for both gas and electricity this vear has
remained broadly the same as last year.

The Trust uses the market-based methodology for calculating its emissions and net carbon intensity so that our
efforts in generating and purchasing low carbon energy are correctly reflacted.
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The Priory Federation of Academies

Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2024

Trustees’ Report (continued)

PFlans for Future periods

I its ongoing wark, the Trust adopts the following approaches:
Organic Alignment: a5 we seek to develop our organisation, we endeavour to work more closaly together.
We, therefore, grow organically by aligning our overarching policies, our best practices and our most
effective procedures.

Agile Partnering: as the educational and chvic landscapes are constantly changing, we seek to identify
colleagues and organiations with a similar ethos with whom we can collaborate.

Creative Innovation: as we encounter increasingly complex challenges, we seek to provide an
environment in which creativity and innovation are key features of the curriculum, the classroom and the
workplace.

Intelligent Accountability: as our Trust develops, we become increasingly focused on defining and then
working to achieve a level of intelligent accountability that is meaningful to the organisation.

In shaort, our priorities are based on a desire: to develop organicaily by becoming more aligned; to work
with inspirational partners; bo deploy new thinking; and to better define, achieve, and calebrate success.,

Auditor

In so far as the Trustees are aware;
=  there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company”s suditor is unaware
= the Trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant
audit infarmation and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.

The Trustees' report, incorporating a strategic report, was approved by order of the Board of Trustees, as the
company directors, on 16 December 2024 and signed on the Board's behalf by

H Gee
Chalr of Trustees
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The Priory Federation of Academies

Finanoial Staterments for the Year Ended 31 August 2024

Governance Statement

Scope of Responsibility

As Trustees we acknowledge we hawve overall responsibility for ensuring that The Priory Federation of Academies
has an effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise, However, such a system is designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Chief Executive, as Accounting Officer, for
ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial management and in
accordance with the réguirements and responsibifities assigned to it In the funding agreement between The Priory
Federation of Academiles and the Secretary of State for Education, They are also responsible for reporting to the
Board of Trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.

Governance

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees' Report and in the
Statement of Trustees’ Responsibilities. The Board of Trustees formally met five times during the year. Attendance
during the year at meetings of the Board of Trustees was as follows;

Trustee Meetings attended Ot of a possible
H D Gee [Chair)
5 Richardson

| Jones

F Knowles

1 Mackindes

5 Diwan

L Tyreman

C Allen

& U B d VW oW n
W W W b W oun N

The Finance Committee is a sub-committee of the main Board of Trustees. its main functions, among those set out
in its Terms of Reference, are to monitor the annual budget of the Trust and its performance 1o budget, to approve
certain expenditure and to recommend the Annual Report to the Trust Board,

Attendance at Finance Committes meelings during the year was as follows:

Trustes Meetings attended Ot of a possible
H Gea 5 5
F Knowles g 5
I Jomes 5 5

The Education & 5tandards Committee is a sub-commitiee of the main Board of Trustees, 185 main function, among
those set out in its Terms of Reference, is to menitor educational strategy and standards across the academies.

Attendance at Education & Standards Committee meetings during the year was as folbows:

Trustes Mectings attended Qut of a possible
F Knowides 5 5
H Gee 5 5
L Tyreman 4 5
| Jones 4 g
C Alken 3 5
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The Priory Federation of Academies

Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2024
Governance Statement (continued)
The Pay, Perfarmance & HR Committee is a sub-committes of the main Board of Trustees. its main functions, among
those set out in its Terms of Reference, are to monitor HR issues and risks; and to carry out the performance

managermient process for Heads and Federation staff Directors.

Attendance at Pay, Performance & HR Committes meetings during the year was as follows:

Trustes Meetings attended Out of 3 passible
% Richardson s 5
H Ges ] 5
| lones 4 5

The Audit Committee is a sub-committee of the main Board of Trustees. 1t main functions, among those set out in
its Terms of Reference, are: (o advise the Board on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Trust"s systems of internal
contred and it5 arcangements for risk management, control and governance processes; to scope, evaluate, monitor
and report on the work of internal and external auditors; and to report ©o the board as required on the above and
other matters within its Terms of Reference.

Artendance at Audit Committee meetings during the year was as follows:

Trustae Meetings attended Ot of a possible

5 Dixwon 4 4

J Mackinder 4 4
Govarnance Raviews

Trustees recognise the importance of external governance reviews and continue to seek aurance in key areas in
lime with its Risk Assurance Framework. During the academic year, the Trust's Quality Assurance Framework was
reviewed by the Trust's internal auditors, Mazars, who deemed the system of controls to be Substantial. In further
recognition of the Trust's commitment 1o strong oversight and management of risk, the effectiveness of the Trust's
Business Continuity Plans were also sorutinised during the year with no significant lssues raksed.

The Trust continues to strengthen its governance arrangements by identifying skills gags through maintenance of
skills matrices for governors and trustees, helping to shape and inform its recruitment and succession strategles. It
#lzo runs a Governance Development Group, providing training and information on relevant topics twice a year,

The Trust oversees the governance arrangements at its academies with bi-annual reviews of the activity of their
Local Governing Bodies to ensure compliance and assurance, It also completes the DIE's self-assessment tool, which
checks that appropriate financial management and governance arrangements are in place.

Conflicts of Interest

The Trust follows the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook and Charities Commission in managing any
potential conflicts of interest, Trustees, members, local governors and senior employees, including those with
budgetary responsibility, are required 1o recerd their relevant business and pecuniary interests on the register of
interests. These interests are updated and monitaored to ensure conflicts of interest are avoided and that any related
party transactions are disclosed In these financial statements. Prior ESFA approval is sought for contracts and other
agresments where required,
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The Priory Federation of Academies

Financial Statemants for the Year Ended 31 August 2024

Governance Statement (continued)

Review of Value for Money

As accounting officer, the Chief Executive has responsibility for ensuring that the Trust delivers good value in the use
of public resources. The accounting officer understands that value for money refers to the educational and wider
societal outcomes, as well as estates safety amd management, achigved in return for the taxpayer resources
recelved.

The accounting officer considers how the Trust's use of Its resources has provided good value for money during each
academic year, and reports to the board of trustees where value for money can be improved, induding the use of
benchmarking data where appropriate, The accounting officer for the Trust has delivered improved value for money
duwrimg the year by

Improving educational outcomes

L

The academies, working and collasborating as a Federation, enabled a common approach to be taken to
values, standards, the use of resources, utilisation of management expertise and the creation of a broad
and rich opportunity for young people to achieve their maximum potential in society.

Existing staffing structures were under regular review by Heads and curriculum managers 10 ensure best
value and best use of resources.

The Trust’s SCITT programme demonstrates that it is attempting to address, in part, the skills shortage in
the education sector,

The Trust's Education & Standards Committes met formally five times during 2023-24 and also held regular
clinics with the Trust's Headteachers, providing support and challenge in pursuit of higher standards and
monitoring the effectiveness of the academies in terms of the key performance indicators that relate to
students,

Financlal governance and oversight

With the Board meeting less than six times during the year, it maintained effective oversight by delegating
financial scruting and oversight 1o the Finance Committee, which met five times during the year, At each
Board meeting, the Chair of the Finance Committes presented a report to the Board with the CFO In
attendance. At the July meeting, the budget and financial forecast were approved and at the December
meeating the annual accounts wene approved.

Monthly management accounts were produced by the CFD to include incame & expenditure, variation to
budget, cash flow and balance sheet reports which were shared with the Chair of Trustees and made
available vo all Trustees, The Chair met monthly with the CEQ and CFO where the financlal position was
revvigwed further,

The Trust's Finance Committee and Audit Committee met a total of nine times during 2023-24, with
committes members presenting scruting and challenge to budgeting processes, spending decisions and
resource allocations,

The Audit Committes engages national education experts Mazars as the Trust's Internal Auditor. During
2023, the Internal Audit team examined the Trust's processes around Cash, Bonk and Treasury
Management, with substantial assurance given over the adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls.
The Trust ulilised the DFEs School Resource Management Self-Assessment tool and View My Financial
Ingights tool to benchmark its academies against similar schools nationally. Apprepriate follow-up actions
were taken for those academies which appear to deviate from the benchmark where & sultable justification
does not exist.
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The Priory Federation of Academies

Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2024

Governance 5tatement (continued)

Purchasing

Contracts and services were regularly reviewed — particularly at any annual review oF Tull-term renewal =
to ensure that the Trust obtained optimum value fior maney.

Economies of scale and multi-site discounts were achieved through a collaborative cross-academies
approach by the Federation Purchasing and Estates & Facilities teams.

The Trust cantinued its framework arrangements for certain areas and levels of procurement so that, where
applicable, best value soruting was carried out by independent third parties.

Contract costs have been held, renegotiated or switched to secure maximum quality and efficiency in major
areas lke catering supplies; cleaning; alarm systems; security; transport; and equipment maintenance and
servicing,

The Trust effectively utilised its condition funding and secured grants to continue energy cost saving
projects across its academies, including the fitting of solar panels, battery storage and replacement of gas
boklers.

Reviewing controls and managing risks

Lessons

Thee Trust, informed by internal reports and controls, provided strategic direction for the use of assats and
funds, with owversight exercised by the Finance Cormmittes and Audit Committes.

All Trust Committees had regard for the Trust’s Risk Register. The Register i reviewed regularly by
management and Trustess,

Heads met regularly with their respective Finance Partners to review individual academy budgets. The
Senior Leadership Team received regular reports from the Chief Financial Officer to help assess current and
forecast income and expenditure plans. Sufficient cash is held in réserve to enable the Federation to
support any unespedted of urgent financial issues that the academbies may experience,

learned

The Trust is mindful of additional investments that will be required over coming years and this informed
the prudent use of its financial resources,

The Trust is assurming that there will be national shortages of teachers in the future. The Trust continued
to “grow i3 own® through its successful SCITT arm.

The Trust is mindful of the need to ensure that Executive Pay falls within the guidance set out in the
Academy Trust Handbook. It has, therefore, reviewed all senior salary levels 1o ensure that, where relevant,
they fall within the national pay structures and where appropriate they are benchmarked against similar

posts.

The Purpose of the System of Internal Control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can, therefore, only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
of effectiveness. The system of internal contral is based on an on-going process deskgned to identify and prioritise
the risks 1o the achievement of Trust policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being
ritalised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. The
system of internal control has continued in place in the Trust throughout the period 1 Septernber 2023 to 31 August
2024 and up to the date of approval aof the annual report and finandial statements,

Page 17 af 65



The Priory Federation of Academies

Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2024

Governance Statement (continued)

Capacity to Handle Risk

The Board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the Trust is exposed, together with the operating, financial
and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The Board of Trustess is of the view
that there is a formal ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the Trust's significant risks that has
been in place for the period 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2024 and up to the date of approval of the annual report,
and financial statements, This process is regularly reviewed by the Board of Trustees,

The Risk and Control Framework

The Trust's system of internal control is based on a framewark of regular management information and
administrative procadures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and accountability. In
particular, it Includes:

= comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annueal budget and periodic financial reports which
are reviewed and agreed by the Board of Trustees

= regular reviews by the Finance Committee of reports which indicate financial perfarmance against the forecasts

and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes

setting targets to measure financial and other performance

clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investmeant) guidelines

delegation of authority and segregation of duties

identification and management of risks

The Trust's internal audit function is carried out by Mazars. The Internal auditor's rale includes giving advice on
financial and other matters and performing a range of checks on the Trust's financial and other syitems. These
checks are directed by the risks arising in the Trust's risk registers and coverage of the Trust’s risk assurance map.
The internal auditor also reports 1o the Board of Trustees, through the Audit Committee, on the operation of the
systems of control and on the discharge of the Board of Trustees' finandal responsibilities.

The internal auditor carrbed out their schedule of work as planned and no materal contral Bsues arose,

Review of Effectiveness
Ag accounting officer, the Chief Executive has responsibility for réviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal
control. During the year in question, the review has been informed by;

the work of the internal auditor
the work of the external auditor
the financial management and governance self-assessment process or the school resource management elf-
assessment tool

#  the work of the executive managers within the Trust who have responsibility for the development and
maintenance of the internal contral framework

The accounting officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal
control by the Audit Committee and the Finance Committee and a plan to ensure continuous improvement of the

systems is in place.

Conclusion
Based on the advice of the audit and risk committee and the accounting officer, the board of trustees is of

the opinion that the academy trust has an adequate and effective framewaork for governance, risk
management and control.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on 16 December 2024 and signed an its behalf by:

Accounting Officer
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Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2024

Statement of Regularity, Propriety and Compliance

As accounting officer of The Priory Federation of Academies | have considered my responsibility to notify the Trust
Baard of Trustees and the Education & Skills Funding Agency [ESFA) of material irregularity, impropriety and nign-
complance with terms and conditions of all funding, including for estates safety and management, under the funding
agreement in place between the Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my consideration | have
had due regard 1o the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook 2023, incuding responsibilities for estates and

safety management.

I eonfirm that | and the Trust Board of Trustees ang able to identify any material irregulas or improper use of all funds
by the Trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the Trust's funding
agreament and the Academy Trust Handbook 2023,

I confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or Tunding non-compliance have been discovered to

date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the Board of Trustees
and ESFA

I lones
Accounting Officer
16 December 2024
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Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2024

Statement of Trustees’ Responsibilities

The Trustees (who are also the directors of the charitable cormpany for the purposes of company law) are responsible
for preparing the Trustees' Report and the financial statements in accordance with the Academies Accounts
Direction published by the Education & Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting Standards [United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice] and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the trustees to prepane financial statements for each financial year. Under company law, the
Trustees must not approve the fimancial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources, including
its income and expenditure, for that peried. In preparing these financial statements, the trustess are required to:

*  select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently

#  obiend the methods and principles in the Charities S0RF 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2023
to 2024

=  make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent

+  state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the finandial statements

= prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it s inapprogriate to presume that the
charitable company will continue in business

The Trustees are respansibie for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
charitable company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006.
They are also responsible for saleguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies financial
#nd other controls, which conform with the requirements both of prepriety and of good financial management. They
are also responsible for ensuring grants received from ESFASDIE have been applied for the purposes intended.

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included
on the charitable company’s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions,

Approved by order of the members. of the Board of Trustees on 16 December 2024 and signed on its behall by:

H Gea
Chairman
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Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2024

Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements to the Members of
The Priory Federation of Academies

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of The Priory Federation of Academies (the Trust) for the vear ended 31
August 2024 which comprise the Statement of financial activities incorporating income and expenditure accoumt,
the Balance sheet, the Statement of cash flows and the related notes, including a summary of significant accounting
policies, The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law, United
Eingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including Financial
Reporting Standard 102 "The Financial Reporing Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of ireland”, the Charities
S0RP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024 issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

In aur oginien the financial statements:

= ghvea true and fair view of the state of the Trust's affairs as at 31 August 2024 and of its incoming resources
and application of resources, including its income and expenditure for the year then ended;

*  have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice: and

*  have been prepaned in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, the Charities SORP
2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024 issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

Basis For Oplnlon

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing {UK) [I5As (UK]}) and applicable law.
Dur respondgibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Trust in sccordance with the ethical
requiremeants that are relevant to our audit of the financial statéments in the United Kingdom, including the Financial
Reporting Council’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfiled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirerments. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinian,

Conclusions Relating To Going Concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Trustees' use of the going concern basis of accounting in
the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Trust's ability to continee as a golng concern for & period
of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for (ssue.

Cur responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Trustees with respect to going concern are described in the relevant
sections of this report.

Drthar Infarmation

The Trustees are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included
in the Annual report, otber than the finandial statements and our Auditors’ report thereon. Other information
includes the Reference and administrative details, the Trustees' report including the Strategic report and the
Governance Statement. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except
to the extent otherwise explicithy stated in cur report, we do nat express any form of assurance conclusion therean.
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Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements to the Members of
The Priory Federation of Academies (continued)

In connection with owr audit of the financial statements, cur responsibility |s to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information ks materially inconsistent with the financial statements or Gur
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. if we identify such material
incansstencies of apparent material misstatements, we are reguired to determine whether there is a material
misstatement in the financial staterments or a material misstatement of the other information. if, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is @ material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact.

We have nothing to repart in this regard.
Opinion On Other Maiters Prescribed By The Companies Act 2006

in our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

# the information ghven in the Trustees' report including the Strategic repart for the finandial year for which
the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements,

= the Trustees' report and the Strategic report have been prepared In accordance with applicable legal
reguirements.

Matters On Which We Are Required To Report By Exception

I the Gght of sur knowledge and understanding of the Trust and its emvirenment cblained in the course of the audit,
we have not identified material misstatements in the Trustees' report including the Strategic report.

‘We hawve nothing to report in respect of the fallowing matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 riquires
us to report to you if, in our opinion;

* adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or

= the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

# certain disclosures of Trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

= wei have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.
Responsibilities Of Trustees

As explained mare fully in the Statement of Trustees’ responsibilities, the Trustees {who are also the directors of the
Trust fior the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being
satisfied that they give a true and falr view, and for such internal contral as the Trustees determing i nece4sanry 1o
enable the preparation of financial staternents that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
L

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assassing the Trust's ability to continue a5 a
golng concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unbess the Trustees either intend to liquidate the Trust or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.
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Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements to the Members of
The Priory Federation of Academies {continued)

Auditors’ Responsibilities For The Audit Of The Financial Statements

Our abjectives are to obiain reasonable assurance about whether the financial staterments a5 a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or ermror, and to issue an Auditors' report that includes our opinion,
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
1245 (LK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
gconomic decisions of users taken on the basic of these financial statements.

irregularities, incuding fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in
line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irragularities, including
fraud, The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below:

We have identified areas of laws and regulations that could reasonably be expected to have a material effect on the
financial statements from our general commercial experience, knowledge of the sector, a review of regulatory and
legal correspondence and through discussions with Trustees and other management obtained as part of the work
requirgd by awditing standards. We have aloo discussed with the Trustees and other management the policies and
procedures relating to compliance with laws and regulations. We communicated laws and regulations throughout
the team and remained alert to any indications of nen-compliance throughout the audit.

The potential impact of different laws and regulations varies considerably. Firstly, the Trust is subject to laws and
regulations that directly impact the financial statements (for example financial reporting legislation) and we have
assessed the extent of compliance with such laws as part of our financial statements audit. We evaluated
management incentives and opportunities for fravdubent manipulation of the financial statements, (including risk of
override of controls) and determined that the principal risks were related to management bias in accounting
estimate and judgemental areas of the financial statements such as depreciation of tangible fixed asset, as well a5
the risk of inappropriate journal entries to increase reported profitability. Audit procedures performed by the
engagement team included the identification and testing of material and unusual journal entries and challenging
managerment on key accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements made in preparation of the financial
statements. We carried out detailed substantive tests on accounting estimates, including reviewing the methods
used by management to make those estimates, re-performing the calculation, and reviewing the cutcome of prior
year estimates,

Secondly, the Trust is subject to other laws and regulations where the consequence for non-compliance could have
a material effect on the amounts or disclosures in the financial statements. We identified Ofsted regulations, Health
and Safety regulations, compliance with the Funding agreement and compliance with the Academy Trust Handbook
as most likely to have such an effect,

Auditing standards limit the required audit procedures to dentify non-compliance with these laws and regulaticns
1o enquiry of the Trustees and other management and inspection. We have performed audit work through enguiries
with management regarding any non-compliance and reviewed all available information to assess whether any
breaches have been found. Through these procedures, if we bacame aware of any non-complance, we considered
the impact on the pracedures performed on the related financial statement items,
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Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements to the Members of
The Priory Federation of Academies (continued)

Owing to the inherant limitations of an awdit, there is an unavoidable risk that we may not have detected some
material misstatements in the finandal statements, even though we have properly planned and performed our audit
in accerdance with auditing standards. The further rermoved non-compliance with laws and regulations is from the
events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely the inherently limited procedures
required by auditing standards would identify it. As with any audit, there is a greater risk of non-detection of
irregularities as these may involve collusion, intentional omissions of the override of Internal controls. We are not
responsible for preventing non-compliance and cannot be expected to detect non-compliance with all laws and
regulations.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's website at: www. froorg.uk/auditorsresponsibilities, This description forms part of our Auditors”

report.
Use Of Our Audit Report

This report I made solely to the Trust's Members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companles Act 2006, Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Trust's Members those
miatters we are reguired to state to them in an Auditors’ report and for no ather purpose, To the fullest extent
permittid by liw, we do ol accepl of assume responsibility to anyone other than the Trust and its Members, as a
bady, for gur pudit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed,

Timathy Godson FCA

for and on behalf of

Duncan and Toplis Audit Umited
Statutory Auditors

d Henley Way

Limcoln

Lincolnshire

LMNG 30R

Date: IG"‘ []_ lq.
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Independent Reporting Accountant’s Assurance Report on Regularity to The
Priory Federation of Academies and the Education & Skills Funding Agency

In accordance with the berms of cur engagement letter dated 2 November 2022 and further to the requirements of
the Education & Skills Funding Agency (ESFA] as included in the Academies Accounts Birection 2023 to 2024, we
have carried out an engagement 1o obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and income
received by The Priory Federation of Academies during the period 1 September 2023 1o 31 August 2024 have been
applied to the purposes identified by Parllament and the finandal transactions conform to the authorities which
govern them.

This report i made solely to The Pricry Federation of Academies and ESFA In accordance with the terms of our
engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so thal we might state to The Priory Federation of Academies
and ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted
by law, we do nol accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than The Priory Federation of Academies and
ESFA, for aur work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of The Priory Federation of Academies’ accounting officer and the
reporting accountant

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of The Priory Federation of Academies’ funding
sgreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated 2B August 2018 and the Academy Trust Handbook, extant
from 1 September 2023, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes
intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the autharities which govern them.

Dur responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession’s ethical guidance
and are to cbtain imited assurance and report In accordance with our engagement letter and 1he requirements of
the Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024, We report to you whether anything has come to our attention in
carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and income received during
the period 1 September 2023 1o 31 August 2024 have not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament or that
the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors and Reporting
Accountant of Academy Trusts issued by ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our
engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement Is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficlent appropriate evidence 10 express a negative conclusion on

regularity.

A limited assurance engagement 5 more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that
might e identified in @ reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion,

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the
Trust's income and axpenditure.
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Independent Reporting Accountant’s Assurance Report on Regularity to The
Priory Federation of Academies and the Education & Skills Funding Agency
(continued)

The work undertaken to draw our conclusion includes:

= An assessment of the risk of material irregularity and impropriety of the Trust’s activities;

= Testing and review of the areas identified through the risk assessment including enquiry, (dentification of
controls processes and examination of supporting evidence and additional verification work where
considered necessary;

=  Consideration and corroboration of the evidence supporting the Accounting Officers statement on
regularity, propriety and compliance and;

*  Consideration of evidence obtained through the work detailed above and any work completed as part of our
audit of the financial statements deemed relevant to support the regularity conclusion,

in line with the Framework and guide for external auditors and reporting accountants of academy trusts issued
March 2024, we have not performed any additional procedures regarding the Trust’s compliance with safeguarding,
health and safety and estates management

Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects the
expenditure disbursed and income received during the perlod 1 September 2023 1o 31 August 2024 has not been
applied to purposes intended by Parllament and the financial transactions do not confirm to the authaorities which
govern them,

Timothy Godsan FCA

for and on behalf of
Duncan and Toplis Limited
Reporting Accountant

4 Hendey Way

Linealn

Lincalnshire

LMG 30R

R L e
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Statement of Financial Activities

for the year ended 31 August 2024 (including Income and Expenditure Account)

Restricted Restricted Restricted
Unresbricted General Endowment Fined Asset Total Total
Funds Funds Funds Funds 2024 2023
Mote £000 E000 £000 £000 EQOD EQ00
Income and endowments from:
Donations and capital grants 3 51 = 1,979 2,030 3,152
Transfer of gxisting academy 3 79 166 3,481 3,726 -
Charitable activities:
Funding for the Trust's
educational operaticns i 65, 1ER 65 3BG &0,015
BCITT 4 1,169 - 1,168 1,105
Other trading activities 5 411 B - - 419 343
InvEstments [ 145 468 - - 613 167
Total (3.3 67,197 - 5,460 73,343 64,822
Enpenditure omn;
Raisimg funds 7 354 B 402 451
Charitable activities:
Trust's educational
operations T 43 B4,153 - 4,532 68,728 63,909
SCITT 7 - 1,692 - 1,602 1,480
Total 437 65,853 4,532 TOEZE 65,880
Net income/[expenditure) 245 1,344 928 2,521 {1,058)
Transfers between funds 18 (&) B4 (56} -
Other recognised gains/{losses)
Actuarial (losses)/gains on
defined benefit pension
e 33 . (1,652) [1,652) (523)
Net movemnent in funds 241 {244} - 872 BES [1,981)
Reconclliation of funds
Total funds brought forward 2,064 8191 500 118,711 129,466 131,447
Tatal funds carried faraard 2,305 7,947 500 115,583 130,335 12%.466
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Balance Sheet
as at 31 August 2024

Fined assets
Intangible assets
Tangible assets

Current assels
Investrments

Stock

Debtors

Cash at bank and in hand

Liabilities
Creditors - amounts falling due within one year

Met current assets
Total assets less current labkilities

Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than ane
year

Net assets excluding pension asset/{liability)
Defined benefit pension scheme asset/{Ikakbility)

Total net assets

Funds of the Acadermy Trust:
Restricted funds

Rastricted fied asset funds
Restricted general funds
Endowment funds

Pension fiseng

Tatal restricted funds

Unrestricted Iincome funds

Total funds

MNote

11
12

14
15
249

1a

17

i

18
18
18
18

18

Company Registration Mumber 00462935 (England and Wales)

2024 2023
£000 £000 E000 £000
[ 9
119,495 118,543
6,165 2557
26 29
2.732 2,586
7,064 10461
15,987 16,073
(5,152) {5,370}
= 10,703
130,336 129,255
(1) [2)
130,335 129,253
. 213
130,335 129,466
119,583 118,711
7.547 7.578
500 500
- 13
128,030 127,402
2,305 2,064
130,335 129 466

The financial statements on pages 27 to 65 were apgroved by the Trustees and authorised for issue on 16 December

J034 and sagned on their behalf by:

Hl-

H Gee
Chair of Trustees
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Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 31 August 2024

2024 2023
£000 £000
Mote
Cash flows from operating activities
Met cash provided by (used In) operations 26 {2,087 {1,895]
Cash flows from investing activities 17 [1,305) {1,659]
Cash flows from financing activities e ] (1} 12
Change in cash and cash equivalents in the reporting period a0 (3,397] i3,556)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 September 2023 10,461 14,007
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 August 2024 7.064 10,461
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MNotes to the Financial Statements

1 Accounting Policles
A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently, except where noted),
Judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below,

Basis of Preparation

The financial staterments of the Trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been prepared under the
historical cost cormvention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard Applicable in the LIE and Republic of
irefand (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to
charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and
Repulblic of Ireland (FRS 102) {Charities SORP (FRS 102)], the Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024 issued by
E5FA, the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006,

Going Concern

The Trustees assess whether the uvse of going concern i appropriate Le. whether there are any material
uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the company o
continue a5 a going concern, The Trustees make this assessment in respect of a period of at least one year from the
date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements and have concluded that the Trust has adequate resources
to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and there are no material uncertainties about the
Trust's ability to continue as a going concern, thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in
prieparing the financial statements.

Income
All incoming resources are recognised when the Trust has entitlerment te the funds, the recelpt is probable and the
amount can be measured rellably.

« Grants
Grants are included In the Statement of Fimancial Activities on a recelvable basis. The balance of income
received for specific purposes but not expended during the period i shown in the relevant funds on the
balance sheet. Where income is received in advance of entitlement of receipt its recognition is deferred and
included in creditors as deferred income. Where entitferment occurs befare income is received, the income is
accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the year for which it is receivable and any unspent amount is
refiected as a balance in the restricted general fund, The Trust is not subject to a limited GAG carried forward
amount.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitlermnent to the grant. Unspent
amounts of capital grant are reflected in the balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital grants
are recognised when there is entitfement and not deferred over the life of the asset on which they are

expended.

= Sponsorship income
Sponsorship income provided to the Trust which amounts 1o a donation is recognised in the Statement of
Financial Activities in the period in which it is receivable (where there are no performance-relabed conditions),
where the receipt is probable and it can be measured reliably.

»  Donations
Donations are recognised on a receivable basks (where there are no performance-related conditbons) where
the receipt s probable and the amount can be reliably measured,

&  Dther income
Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the period it is recelvable and to the extent the
goods have been provided or on completion of the service,

= |nterest recefvable
Interest recetvable is included within the Statement of Financial Activities on a receivable basis.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Donated goods, facilities and services

Goods donated for resale are included at fair value, being the expected proceeds from sale less the expected
costs of sale. If it is practical to assess the fair value at recelpt, it is recognised in stock and ‘Income fram other
trading activities”. Upon sale, the value of the stock is charged against “Income from other trading activities’
and the proceeds are recognised as “Income from other trading activities'. Where it is impractical to fair value
the items due to the volume of low value items they are not recognised in the financial statements until they
are sold. This income is recognised within *Income from other trading activitbes”,

Transfer of existing academies into the Trust
Where assets and liabilities are received on the transfer of an existing acaderny into the Trust, the transferred

net assets are measured at fair value and recognised in the balance sheet at the point when the risks and
rewards of ownership pass to the Trust. An equal amount of income is recognised for the transfer of an
existing acadermy into the Trust within donations and capital grant income to the net assets acquired

Donated fixed assets {excluding Transfers on conversion/into the Trust)

Where the donated good Is 2 fixed asset it is measured at fair value, unless it is impractical ta measure this
reliably, In which case the cost of the item to the donor should be used. The gain is recognised as income
from donations and 3 corresponding amount is included in the fixed asset category and depreciated over the
useful economic life in accordance with the Trust's accounting policies.

Expenditure
Expéndilure i recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligathon to transfer economic benafit to a third

party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settiement and the amount of the
obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is dassified by activity, The costs of each activity are made up of
the total of direct costs and shared costs, including support costs involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs
attributable to a single activity are allocated directly to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than
one activity and support costs which are not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities
on a basis consistent with the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent, and
depreciation charges allocated on the portion of the asset's use,

Expenditure on Raising Funds
This includes all expenditure incurred by the Trust to raise funds for its charitable purposes and includes costs

of all fundraising activities events and non-charitable trading.

Charitable Activities
Thede dre costs incurred on the Trust's educational operations, including support costs and costs relating 1o

the governance of the Trust apportioned to charitable activities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Intangible Fived Assets

Intangible assets costing £2,500 or more are capitalised and recognised when future economic beneafits are probable
and the cost or value of the asset can be measured refiably. Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost and are
subsequently measured at cost net of amortisation and any provision for impairment

Amaortisation is provided on intangible fixed assets at rates calculated to write off the cost of each asset on areducing
balance basls ower its expected useful life, as follows:

# Purchased computer software 30%
Intangibde assets are reviewed an an annual basis to review for any signs of impairment.

Tangible Fixed Assets
Tangible fixed assets scquired since the Trust was established are included in the accounts at cost, net of
depreciation and any provision for impairment.

Assets costing £2,500 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets are carried at cost, net of depreciation and any
provision for impairment.

‘Where tangible fived assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the government or from
the private sector, they are incheded in the Balance Sheet at cost and deprecliated over thelr expected useful
economic ife. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding requiring the continued use of the asset,
the related grants are credited to @ restricted fixed asset fund In the Statement of Financial Activities and carried
forward in the Balance Sheet, Depreciation on the refevant assets is charged directly to the restricted fived assat
fund in the Statement of Financial Activities, Where tangible fizsed assets have been acquired with unrestricted funds,
depreciation on such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.

Depreciation iz provided on all tangible fixed sioets ather than frechold land and a5dels undir contiruction, at fates
calculated to write off the cost of each asset on a reducing balance basis over its expected useful life, as follows:

*  Frechold buildings %

+  Long leasehold buildings 2-15%
¢« Computer hardware 30%

=  Motor vehicles 25%

«  Furnitude and eguipment 15%

Assets in the course of construction are Included at cost, Depreciation on these assets is not charged until they
are brought into use and reclassified under one of the categories listed abowve,

& review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying value of fixed assets
and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment losses are recognised in the
Statement of Financial Activities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Liabilities

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result of a past event, it is
probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settiement, and the amount of the settlement can
be estimated reliably. Liabillties are recognised at the amount that the Trust anticipates it will pay to settle the debt
or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the goods or services it must provide.

Prowisions
Provisions are recognised when the Trust has an cbligation at the reporting date as a result of a past event which it
is probabie will result in the transfer of econamic benefits and the obligation can be estimated rafiably.

Prowisions are measured at the best estimate of the amounts reguired to settle the obligation. Where the effect of
the time value of money is material, the provision is based on the present value of those amounts, discounted at the
pre-tax discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability, The unwinding of the discount is recognised within
interest payable and sirnilar charges.

Long term lease of property

When a long term lease has been entered into by The Priory Federation of Academies following the procurement of
a new build through the Partnership for Schools the cast of the new build together with the cost of the original land
and any remalning Buildings i included in the appropriate fived asset category and depreciated over its useful
economic fife in accordance with the Trust's accounting policy regarding tangible fixed assets.

Leased Assets
Rentals under operating leases are charged on a straight line basis over the lease berm.

Investments
The Trust's investments are currently In the form of interest-bearing zero-risk deposits in UK high street bank
acoounts,

Financial Instruments
The Trust enly halds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets and financial liabilities of
the Trust and their measurement basis are as follows:

Finonciol assets = trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments measured at
amortised cost as detailed in note 15. Prepayments are not financial instruments. Amounts due to the charity's
whilly ownibd subsidiary are held at face value less any impairment.

Cash at bank = is classified as a basic fimancial instrument and is measured at face value.

Financial Nobilities — tiade creditors, accruals and other creditars are financial instruments, and are measured at
amartised cost as detailed in note 16. Taxation and soolal security are not included in the financial instruments
disclosure definition. Deferred Income is not deemed to be a financial liability, as the cash settlement has already
taken place and there s an obligation to deliver services rather than cash or another financial instrument. Amounts
due to charity’s wholly owned subsidiary are held at face value less any impalrment.

Stocks

Stocks are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value, after making due allowance for obsolete and slow
moving items,
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Taxation
The Trust is considerad to pass the tests et aut in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act 2010 and therefore it
meets the definition of a chasitable company for UK corporation tax purpases.

Accordingly, the Trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains received within
categories covered by part 11, chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation of
Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied exdusively to charitable purposes.

As of 1 April 2011 the Trust was registered for VAT under the partial exemption scheme, this therelore means that
some resaurces are Included in the accounts inclusive of irmecoverable VAT and some are included excluding VAT,

Pensions Benefits
Retirament banefits to amployees of the Trust are provided by the Teachers’ Pension Scheme (TPS] and the Lacal
Government Pension Scheme (LGPS). These are defined benefit schemes.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of penslons over emplovess”
working lves with the Trust in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially level percentage of current and
future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by the Government Actuary on the basis of
quadrennial valuations using a prospective unit credit methad, TPS is an unfunded multi-employer scheme with no
underlying assets to assign between employers, Consequently, the TPS is treated as a defined contribution scheme
for accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the period to which they relate.

The LGPS 5 a funded multi-emplover scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the Trust in separate
trustese administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and labilities are measured on an
actuarial basis using the projected unit credit methed and discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of
return an a high quality corporate bond of eguivalent term and currency to the labilities. The actuarial viduations
are obtained at least trienndally and are updated at each balance sheet date, The amounts charged to net
incomie/[expenditure} are the current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes,
settlements and curtailments. They are Included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined
benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities and comprises the interest cost on
the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, caloulated by multiphying the fair value of
the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to discount the benefit obligations, The difference
between the interest income on the scheme assets and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other
recognised gains and losses,

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses,

Furnd Accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent thase resources which may be used towards mesting any of the charitable
objects of the Trust at the discretion of the trustees.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources, which are 1o be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by funders,
where Lhe asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the funder/donor
and include grants from the Education & Skills Funding Agency.
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Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future, The resulting accounting estimates and
assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results, The estimates and assumptions that have a
significant risk of causing & material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
finamclal year are discusted balow,

The prisent value of the Local Government Penslon Scheme defined benefit iability depends on a number of factors
that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the
met cost (Income) for pengsions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in
nobe 33, will impact the carrying amount of the pension asset/liability. Furthermare a roll farward approach which
projects results from the latest full actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2022 has been used by the actuary in
valuing the pensions liability at 31 August 2024, Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward
approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension asset,/Tability.

Agency Arrangements

The Trust acts as an agent in distributing 16-19 bursary funds from ESFA. Payments received from ESFA and
subsequent disburserments to students are excluded from the statement of financial activities as the Trust does nat
have control over the charitable application of the funds. The Trust can use up to 5% of the allocation towards its
own administration costs and this is recognised in the statement of financlal activities, The funds receved and paid
and any balances held are disclosed in note 32,
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2 General Annual Grant

The Trust does not have a lirmit on the amount of GAG that can be carried forward from year-to-year, as per the
Academy Trust Handbook.

3 Donations And Capital Grants
Restricted Restricted

Unrestricted General Fixed Asset Total Taotal
Funds Funds Funds 20248 023
£000 E000 £000 EQDD EQQQ
Interest recelved on endowment funds 3 - 3 2
Daonations recelved 48 - . 48 510
Capital grants - - 1,879 1,979 2,680
Transfers of existing academies F | 166 3481 3,736 -
130 166 5460 5,756 3,152

2023 1otal 517 : 2,680 3,192
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4 Funding for the Trust's educational operations

Restricted  Restricted

Unrestricted General  Fixed Adzet Total Total
Funds Funads Funds 2024 2023
£000 E000 £000 000 £000
DFE / ESFA grants
Genaral Annual Grant (SAG) - 43,465 43,4565 38,776
16 to 19 Grant Funding . 4,597 4,597 4,589
Pupil Premium . 2,691 2,691 2,391
Rates Relief = 298 = 298 252
16 to 19 Bursary = 22 . a2 26
Other granty - 3414 - 3414 2,585
Catch-up premium - - - - -
Recovery premium - 515 - 515 482
Tuition funding - a3 . 93 153
Other COVID-19 funding - - =
55,045 55,095 50,254
Other Governmant grants
Special educational needs - 4,111 - 4,111 3,200
Cther grants < 1,501 . 1,501 2555
Coronavirus Job Aetention Scheme grant x = - . :
Other COVID-19 funding . - 2 -
5,612 : 5612 6,298
Other educational bodies
Other educational income = 257 257 1|
= 257 257 568
Other income
Bdinkbus income - 3 3 .
Mursery income - 11 11 19
Staff on secondment - 150 150 46
Trip income - G658 = 9638 B13
Catering Income - 1,114 - 1,114 1,052
Sundry income - 2,176 - 217 Gb5
4,422 4,422 2,895
SCITT
DfE / ESFA grants - 53 53 1
Other income - 1,116 - 1,116 1,104
1,169 1,169 1,105
Funding for the Trust's educational operations = 65,555 - 66,555 61,120
2023 1otal - 61,130 61,120
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5 Other trading acthvitles

Lettings and hire of fachities
pelusic tuition

2023 Total

& Investment Inoome

interest from short-term deposits

interest from cash in bank
Pension finance income

2023 Total

T Expanditura

Expenditure on raising funds
Educational operations

Direct costs

Allocated support costs
SCITT

Direct costs

Allocated support costs

The Priory Federation of Academies

Financlal Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2024

Rectricted Restricted

Unrestrictied General  Fiwed Asset Tatal Tatal
Funds Funds Funds 2024 2023
£000 £000 £000 £ £000
411 - 411 336
. B ] 7
411 B 419 343

336 T 343

Restricted Restricted

Unrestricted General  Fixed Assat Tatal Tatal
Funds Funds Funds 2024 2023
£000 £000 £000 £0:0 £000
113 - 113 20
32 - iz 33
- 468 468 114
145 4GR . 613 167

53 114 . 167
Tatal Taotal
Staff Costs Premises Other 2024 2023
E£0OQ £ E000 £ £000
181 204 17 402 491
a3 225 - 3,700 &b, 525 42,594
7,058 BG71 6,074 21,803 21,315
o559 a7 385 1,391 1,232
286 - 15 a0l 248
a2l 700 8,922 10,191 0,822 65,880
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7 Expenditure [continued)

Met income{expenditure) for the period incdudes:

Cperating leases
Amortisation of intangible assets

Depreclation of tangible fixed assels
Auditors’ remuneration

- payable to external auditors - statutary audit

- payable to external auditors - other services
- payable to internal auditors - Internal awdit

Profitf{loss) on disposal of fived assets

Included within expenditure are the following transactions:

Gifts made by the Trust
Unrecowverable debts

Fixed asset losses

8 Charitable Activities

Direct costs - educational operations
Direct casts = 5CITT

Support costs - educational operations
Support costs = SCITT

Analysis of support costs

Support staff costs
Depreciation
Technology costs
Fremises costs
Other suppart costs
Legal costs = other
Governance casts
Total support costs

2024 2023

E000 E0

184 166

3 3

2,797 2,659

35 33

4 3

35 B

{1594) [36)

Tatal £ Individual Iterns above £5,000
1,874
2,628

193,631 -

Total Tatal

2024 2023

£000 £000

46,945 42,334

1,391 1,232

21,803 21315

201 Tag

0420 B5,389

Educational Total Total

5CITT  operations 2024 2023

a0 £000 £000 000

286 7,058 7,344 6,457

- 2,800 2,800 2,662

o 3,558 5,556 T.184

3,115 3,115 2573

15 2,833 2,848 2, 2E8

244 244 a7

197 197 172

3m 21,303 22,104 21,563
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9 staff

The average number of persons employed by the Trust during the year was as follows:

Headcount 2024 Fri I Pk ]
Ne. No.
Teachers 470 463
Administration and support 847 807
Panagamant 8BS 76
Total 1,402 1,345
Full Time Equivalents 2024 2023
Mo, Na.
Teachers 427 422
Administration and support 472 454
Management 82 3
Total g81 Q45
5taff costs and employee benefits
Staff costs during the pericd were: 2024 2023
£000 EQDD
Wages and salaries 38,4494 34,676
Social securfity costs 3,837 3416
PFension costs B 370 B, 145
Cither amployee benefits 120 65
50,821 46,302
Agency staff costs 723 636
Staff restructuring costs 165 83
51,709 47,021

staff restructuring costs comprise:

Redundancy payments 15 .
Severance payments 150 E3
Other restructuring costs - -

165 B3
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9 Staff (continued)
Staff severance payments

The Trust paid & severance payments in the year, disclosed in the following bamds:

0-£25,000 b
£25,001 - ES0,000 i
£50,001 - £100,000

£101,000 - £150,000
£150,000+

Special staff severance payments

Included within staff restructuring costs are special severance payments totalling £150,371 [2023; £82,997]. individually,
the payments were E49,.950, £27 000, £20,000, £15.000, £15 000, £13,000, £6,000 and £4,421.

Higher pald staff

The numbser of employess whose emoluments exceeded £60,000 (including taxable benefits but excluding employer
pension contributions) in the year was 58 (2023: 38). The total emoluments of these employees were in the following

rarges:

2024 2023

Nao. Mo,

60,001 - £70,000 26 16
£70,001 - £80,000 17 g
£80,001 - £90,000 B 3]
£90,001 - £100,000 4 3
£100,00% - EL10,000 2 3
£110,001 - EXZ0,000 2 -
£160,001 - £170,000 . 1
£170,001 - £180,000 | -
BB k1

Of the above, 55 employees [2023: 37) participated in the Teachers' Pension Scheme, During the year ended 31 August
2024, employer's pension contributions for these stalf amounted to £1,081,143 (2023; £691,265).

Of the above employees, 2 employee (2023 1) participated in the Local Government Pension Scherme. During the yvear
ended 31 August 2024, employer's pensicn contributions for these staff amounted to E38 435 (2023: £19.972).

Key management personnel
The key management personnel of the Trust comprise the Trustees and the senisr management team as listed on page 2.

The total amount of employee benefits {including employer pension contributions and employver national insurance
contributions] received by key management personnel for their services to the Trust was £1,347 9456 [2023; £1,250,166).
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10 Related Party Transactions = Trustee remuneration and expenses

The Chief Executive and other staff Trustees only receive remuneration in respect of services they provide undertaking
the roles of the Chief Executive and teaching staff and not in respect of their services as Trustees.

The remuneration intluding other taxable benefits paid to the Chief Executive and staff trusbees during the period
comprised:

2024 023
£000 EODO
Mr 1 Jones — CEQ and Trustee
Remuneration 175-180 165-170
Employer pension contributions 45-50 35-40

Other Trustees did not receive any payments, other than reimbursement of out of packet expenses, from the Trust in
respect of their role as Trustees.

Total pensions paid on behalf of the highest remunerated trustee amounted to £46,006 (3023; £38,782).

During the year ended 31 August 2024, the following payments were made to Trustesas:

2024 23
£ £
Trustees' sxpanses
Travel & subsistence within the UK 510 467
Other expenses (claimed by reason of employment) .
Taotal 510 267
Murmber of Trustees claiming expenses 1 1
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11 Intangible Fixed Assets
Compuber Development

Software Costs Tatal
EQQ) £000 £
Cost or wvaluation
At 1 Seplember 2023 7 - 71
Additions . - P
Transfers - . _
At 31 August 2024 71 - M
Accurmulated amaortisation and impairment provisions
At 1 September 3023 ) - B2
Charged In period 3 - 3
At 31 August 2024 B5 - B5
Net book values
At 31 August 2023 ] . g
At 31 August 2024 & - 4]
12 Tangible Fixed Assets
Freehold Land Leasehold Land Assets under Motar
and Buildings and Bulldings Construction Vehicles
E000 £000 E0DD £000
Cost or valuation
At 1 September 2023 20,266 113,504 28 102
Additions - - 3 7
Transfers - (113 (28} .
Disposals . {74) . i
Transfer of existing academy - 3,633 - .
At 31 August 2024 20,2568 116,950 | 129
Accumulated depreciation and impairment provisions
At 1 September 2023 2,134 17,779 ‘ &0
Charged in period 294 1,659 - 11
Transfers . (4] a .
Disposals - (8] -
Transfer of existing academy - 650 -
At 31 August 2024 2,433 20,078 - 7
Net book values
AL 31 August 2023 18,129 95,725 28 47
AL 3 August 2024 17,835 96,872 3 58
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12 Tangible Fixed Assets (continued)
Computer Furniture and

Hardware Equipmiant Tatal
E0000 £000 Eim0e0
Carst or wvaluation
At 1 September X023 4,537 19,224 157,663
Additiens 3 4249 4562
Transfers - 141 -
Disposals {4,291) (113) (4,478)
Transfer of existing academy 166 B37 4,736
At 31 August 2024 515 20,518 158,383
Accumulated depreciation and impairment provisions
Al 1 September 2023 4,317 14,825 39,120
Charged in period 67 766 2,797
Tramsfers - 4 :
Disposals {4,205) (73) {4, 284)
Transler of existing academy 227 378 1,255
At 31 August 2024 406 15,000 3B 888
Met book values
At 31 August 2023 220 4,355 118,543
At 31 August 2024 109 4618 119,495
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13 Current Asset Investments

2024 Fiirk}
EO00 E000
Value at 1 September 29497 2,997
Additions 6,165 2997
Disposals (2,997) {2,997)
Value at 31 August 6,165 2,997

The Trust held investments of £6,165,000 relating to sterfing deposits [exceeding 3 months maturity from the balance

sheet date).
14 Stock 2024 2023
EDDD £000
Catering supplies 24 i
General books and stationery 2 2
6 29
15 Debltors 2024 2023
E000 £
Trade deblors ars 581
Prepayments and accrued income 1,937 1,442
Other taxes - VAT 419 &0
Other debtors - due under 1 yoar 1 3
2,732 2,586
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16 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

2024 2023
ED(0 £004
Trade creditors 331 Qg2
fccruals and deferred Inceme 2009 271
Other loans 2 2
Other creditors 1,417 1,347
Other taxation and social security E33 768
152 2,370
2024 2023
Deferred income £000 £000
Deferred income at 1 September 1,037 957
Resources deferred in the year 1,128 1,036
Amount released from previous year {1,012) 1956}
Deferred income at 31 August 1,153 1,037
Deferred income at 31 August comprises: 2024 2023
£000 £000
ESFA grants reé bursary and ather grants applicable to future periods 388 312
Local Authority and other educational grants applicable to future periodt 48 47
Income for trips rec'd in advance where visit date falls within future periods 659 622
Charitable funds raised to be donated 2 3
Portien of 560 Grant that falls outside the reporting period 28 -
CCF and Dok income that falls outside of reporting period 5 =
Other 23 58
1,153 1,037
17 Creditors: amounts falling due greater than one year
2024 2023
£00:0 £000
Loans 1 2
1 2

Loans comprise:

- £2, 742 from Lincolnshire County Councll for solar panels at The Priory Pembroke Academy, ransferred on
conwersion to the Trust. The lean was taken out for £17 581 oa 1 December 2015 over 10 years at an interest
rate of 0.75%, calculated on balance of loan outstanding at half vearly intervals.
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18 Funds
Balance at Gains, Balance at
1 September Losses and 31 August
2023 Income Expenditure Transfers 2024
E000 E£000 £0040 £000 E0O0
Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant [GAG) 2,197 43,631 {43,485) 147 B, 490
16 to 1% Grant Funding . 4,597 {4.597] - =
Orther DIE/ESFA grants 56 6,478 {6,499] [4) 31
Other DIE/ESFA COVID-19 funding a4 608 (652) . -
Local Government grants 36 5,612 15,5649 [55) 24
Other educational bodies 39 545 [561) < 23
Other incomie {394) 5,258 {5.461) {24} [GZ1)
Pension reseni 213 468 G971 [1,652) -
8,191 67,197 (65,853) [1,588) 7.947
Rastricted fixed asset funds
DFEESFA capital granits 1.776 3,481 |50 164 10,831
School Condition Allocation 17 1,645 [1,452] (168] 46
Devalved Formula Capital 121 191 {170) {139) 3
T-Level Capital Funding 21 139 i110) (17) 33
Faraday Centre funding 340 - {7l - 333
Other educational badies 1,290 - i(148) a7y 1,229
Schoal carry forwards 35,428 - (512) . 34,916
Priory Fundraising Trust 858 - (12] - BTG
sports England 121 (3 - 11E
Partnership fior Schools 71,247 {1.494) ir 89, TH0
Football Foundation 187 (4] - 183
Cale of property proceads 1,275 [20) - 1,245
118,711 5,460 14,532) {56} 119,583
Rastricted endowment funds
Sponsorship S00 - 500
Total restricted funds 127,402 72,657 (70,385) |1,644] 128030
Unrestricted general funds
Goneral funds 2,084 A6 {437) () 2,305
Total unrestricted funds 2,064 686 1437) (&) 2,305
Total funds 129 466 73,343 (70,822} {1,652) 130,335
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18 Funds (continued)

Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as follows:

Balance at Gaing, Balance at
1 September Losses and 31 August
2022 Income Expenditure Transfers 2023
£000 £000 £000 £000 E£0:00
Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant (GAG) 9,702 39,776 (38,784) {2,497 8,197
16 to 19 Grant Funding - 4 589 (4,589) - -
Other DFESESFA grants 72 5,255 (5,271) - 56
Catch-up premium 14 - {14}
Cther DFESESFA COVID-19 funding 85 635 {&r6) - &
Local Government grants 87 6,298 (5,840) (509) 36
Other educational bodies 25 GO0 {871} {15} 39
Other income {344) 3,674 (3,655) (69) (304)
Pension resenie 1,454 114 1432} (923} 213
11,095 61,241 {60,132} {4,013} §,191
Restricted fixed asset funds
DAESESFA capital grants 7,325 - (4E6] 917 F
Schowl Condition Allocation 042 1,643 {2,387) (1B1) 17
Devolved Formula Capital - 532 [135) {27a) 121
T-Level Capital Funding . 505 (24) {460) 21
Faraday Centre funding 347 . (7 - 340
Dther educational bodies ROZ - [105) 503 1,280
School carry forwards 35,983 - {525) (30} 35,428
Priory Fundralsing Trust 507 - (&) BT EEE
Sports England 123 - {2} = 121
Partnership for Schooks 70,230 - [1,516) 2,533 71,247
Football Foundation 190 - {3} - 187
Sale of property proceeds 1,313 - {32} (5] 1,275
117,762 2,680 {5, 208] 3,477 118,711
Restricted endowment funds
Spansorship 500 - : z £00
Total restricted funds 129,357 63,921 (65,340) [53B6] 127,402
Unrestricted general funds
General funds 2,050 801 [540) {3B7) 2,064
Tatal unrestricted funds 2,090 801 [540) (387) 2,064
Total funds 131447 Gd 822 (65, 880) {923) 129,466

Fage 48 of 65



The Priory Federation of Academies

Financial 5tatements for the Year Ended 31 August 2024
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

18 Funds [continued)
The specific purposes for which the funds are 1o applicd are as follows:

Restricted General Funds

General Annual Grant {GAG]
This will be expended on the provision of education and teaching activities.

16 to 13 Grant Funding
This will be expended on the provision of Post-16 education and teaching activities.

Other DFE/ESFA grants

These are a variety of designated funds for the pravision of education and teaching activities,

Catch-up premium
This funding is for specific activities to support pupil's education recovery following missed learning caused
by COVID-19.

Other DfE/ESFA COVID-19 funding
These are a variety of designated funds provided by DFE [induding E5FA) related to COVID-19, including
Recovery Premium and the National Tutoring Programme.

Other COVID-13 funding
These relate to funds received to support COVID-19 mass testing and vaccinations.

Local Government grants
Thiese funds are designated for the provision of various educational activities in accordance with the terms
of the relevant Local Authority grant. This will largely relate to funding for Special Educational Needs.

Other educational bodies

These funds are designated for the provision of various designated education and teaching activities in
actordance with the terms of the relevant educational body. This will include funding for Graduate
Teachers and other educational income.

Teaching Adl
These funds are designated for the activities of the Teaching Alliance.

Other income
This will be expended on the provisien of education and teaching activities, including the cost of

educational tripd for students,

Pension reserve

In accordance with the latest ESFA Accounts Direction this reserve is required in respect of the Local
Government Pension Scheme calculated in accordance with FRS102.
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Restricted Fixed Assets Funds

DfE / ESFA capital grants

These funds are carried forward to meet the spedific costs of fixed asset projects and to cover the
depreciation charges that will be reguired on these projects going forward and the current fixed assets
held.

schogl Condition Allacation
These funds are designated for keeping school buildings safe and in good working order by tackling poor
bublding condition, building compliance, energy efficiency, and health and safety issues,

Devolved Formuly Capital
These funds are allocated to spend on capital projects that meet individual academies priorities in order
to help maintain and improve the condithen of school bulldings and grounds,

T-Level Capital funding
These funds relate to spend on capital development of facilities for the delivery of T Levels.

Faraday Centre funding
These funds are carried forward to cover the future depreciation charges that will be required on the

Faraday Project acquired from Lincolnshire County Council grants in earier years.

Orther ed ional bodies
These funds are carried forward to cover the future depreciation charges that will Be required on the foed
as5ets acquired from Other Educational Bodies grants in earlier years.

school carry forwards
These funds are carried forward to cover the future depreciation charges that will be required on the fixed

assets acquired from the previous Schools Carry Forwards in earlier years,

Priory Fundraising Trust
These funds are carried forward to cover the future depreclathon charges that will be required on the
previcusly gifted assets from the Priory Fundraising Trust.

aports England
These funds are carried forward to cover the future depreciation charges that will be regquired on the fixed
assats acquired from Sports England in earlier years.

Partnership for Schooly

These funds are carried forward to cover the future depreciation charges that will be required on the fixed
assets acqguired from the various new builds procured by the Lincolnshire County Coundil in the currem
and earlier years,

Eootball Foundation
These funds are carried forwand to cover the future depreciation charges that will be required on the fixed
assets acquired from Football Foundation in earlier years.

sale of property proceeds

Thase funds are carried forward to cover the future depreciation charges that will be required on the fixed
assets acquired from sale of property proceeds in earlier years.
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18 Funds {continued)

Restricted Endowement Funds

Sponsorship

This is a permanent reserve that is held as sponsorship for the Trust, The income generated by the
Endowment reserve is allocated to the General Restricted reserve which is used for the provision of

educathon.

Unrestricted general funds

General funds

These funds have been generated through other trading activities and may be used towards mesting any
of the charitable objects of the Trust at the discretion of the Trustees.

Analysis of scademies by cost
Teaching and
Educational Other Other Costs
Support Staff Support  Educational  (Excluding

Costs Stafi Costs Supplies Dep'n) Tatal 2024 Total 2023

EDOO £000 E000 b i i) £000 £000
The Priory Academy L55T 707 796 508 2,037 11,258 10,510
The Priory Lincaln Academy 4,801 718 501 1,294 7.314 7,282
The Priory Witham Acadermy B, 164 655 1859 1,275 8313 7,710
The Priory Ruskin Academy T.218 103 514 1,553 9,988 9,603
The Priory Belvoir Academy 3,111 243 295 777 4,426 4,058
The Priory Pembroke 2,992 db2 216 598 4,768 3,640
Ling Moor Primary Academy 1,696 1GE 96 313 2,473 2,115
Heighington Milllield 980 i33 207 g23 2,143 1,466
Hurntingtower Acadermy 2,010 150 g2 EF L 2,658 4,399
Waddington Redwaod 1,314 116 109 *16 2,054 1,608
Cherry Willingham 766 76 38 201 1,081 1,063
Willoughby Academy 2,492 206 50 343 3,091 3,014
5t Johns Primary Academy 1.075 122 A1 181 1,439
Other 1,684 2,880 91 2875 1,512 8,714
Tatal 44,227 7482 2,557 13,162 67,628 63,182
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Analysis of academies by fund balanca:

2024 2023

EDD EDDO
The Priory Academy LSST 1,788 1871
The Priory City of Lincoln Academy (1,042) [1,133)
The Priory Witham Academy 1,582 1,926
The Priory Auskin Academy 1.582 1,527
The Priory Belvolr Acadermy 354 141
The Pricry Pembroke Academy 735 794
Ling Moor Primany Academy 421 B4
Helghington Millfield Primary Acadermy [23) (59)
Huntingt ower Community Primary Acadermy 200 365
Waddington Redwood Primary Acadermy 50 242
Cherry Willingham Prirmary Acadermy 366 232
Wiloughby Academy 135 36
5t Johns Primary Academy 245
Contingency 4,025 4,216
Total before fized assets and pension reserve 10,752 10,542
Restricted fixed asset fund 119,583 118,711
Pensicn reserve . 213
Total 130,335 135,468

Deficits:

The Prigry City of Linceln Academy: The academy’s historic deficit is supported from the central contingency.
Heighington Millfield Primary Acadermy: The cumulative deficit was inherited from a predecessor Trust on transfer and is
supported from the central contingency.
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19 Analysis of net assets between funds

Fund balances at 31 August 2024 are represented by:

Restricted Restricted Restricted

Unrestricted General Funds Endowment — Flxed Asset
Funds Public Funds Private Furds Total
£000 E000 £D0O £000 E£000
intangible fixed assets - . & -]
Tangible fixed assets - - . 119,495 119,495
Current assers 2.305 13,100 500 az 15,987
Current liabdlities a {5,153) - - 15,153)
Fension scheme asset - - - - -
Total net assets 2,305 7.947 500 119,583 130,335

Comparative information in respect of the preceding period s as follows:

Restricted Restricted Restricted

Unrestricted General Funds  Endowment Finad Asset
Funds PFublic Funds Private Funds Total
£000 £000 EDDO £000 £000
Intangible fived assets 9 9
Tangible fixed assets - - - 118,543 118,543
Current assets 2,064 13,350 500 159 16,073
Current liabilities . {5.372) - - 15.372)
PFension scheme assat - 213 - - 213
Total net assets 2,064 8,191 500 118,711 129,466
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20 Central Services

Thet Trust provided a wide range of shared services to its academies during the year, described further in The Priory
Handbook and summarised under the following headings:

* Governance

= Safeguarding

» Professional Learning

® Finamce

» Human Resources

= information Technology

= Management Information Systems
= Data Compliance

* Communications

* Marketing

* Health & Safety

= ithoo! Condition and Capital Projects Management
* Estales & Procurement Services

» Welfara

* Wellbeing

The Trust's policy for apportioning the cost of the shased central servioes is based on an allocation method using
appropriate drivers that represent the estimated dermand for the services at each academy.

The actual amounts contributed during the year were as fallows:

2024 2023

£000 £000
The Pricry Acadaemy LS5T BES B2E
The Priory Witham Academy G093 574
The Priory City of Lincoln Academy 551 501
The Priory Ruskin Academy 756 720
The Prigry Belvoir Academy 344 317
The Priary Pembroke Academny 317 266
Ling Moor Primary Academy a7 92
Heighington Millfiedd Primary Academy 59 62
Huntingtower Community Primary Academy 11z 103
waddington Redwood Primary Academy B5 &1
Charry Willingham Primary Academy 52 43
Willoughby Acaderry 10& 54
5t Johins Prirnary Academy 44 -
Oither ] 103

4,076 3,764
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21 Related Party Transactions
Interests in transactions

Declarations of business interests have been received from all Members, Trustees, members of school committees,
mermbers of all Senior Management Teams and finance staff.

H lones, partner of | Mackinder, a trustee, is employed by the Trust 35 a teacher. H Jones' appointment was made in
open competition and | Mackinder was not involved in the decision-making process regarding appointment. H Jones
i% paid within the noarmal pay scale for her rode and receives no special treatment as a resull of her relationship 1o 2
trustes.

P Dixon, partner of 5 Dixon, a trustee, is employed by the Trust as a teaching assistant. P Dixon's appokntment was
made in gpen campetition and 5 Dixon wias not involved in the decision-making process regarding appoeintment. P
Daxon is paid within the normal pay scale for her role and recelves no special treatment as a result of her relitionship
to a trustee,

&2 Trustees' and offlcers’ insurance

The Trust has opted into the Department for Education’s risk protection arrangement [RPA), an alternative to insuranoe
whiere UK government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects trustees and officers from claims arising from
negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on academy trust business, and provides cover up to £10,000,000.
It i= not possible to guantify the trustess and officers indemnity element from the overall cost of the RPA scheme
membership.

23 Contingent liabilities

During the pericd of the Funding Agreement, in the event of the sale or disposal by other means of any asset for which
a Government capital grant was received, the Trust is required either to re-invest the proceeds or to repay to the
secretary of State for Education the same proportion of the proceeds of the sale or disposal as eguates with the
proportion of the original cost met by the Secretary of State.

Upon termination of the Funding Agreement, whether as a result of the Secretary of State or the Trust serving notice,
the Trust shall repay to the Secretary of State sums determined by reference to:

a) the value at that time of the Trust's site and premises and other assets held for the purpose of the Trust: and

b}  the extent to which expenditure incurred in providing those assets was met by payments by the Secretary of
State under the Funding Agreement,

24 Capital Commitments

2024 2023
£000 E00:0
Contracted for, but not provided In the financial statements . 110

The abowe capital commitments will be met by the carry forward reserves present as at the 31 August 2024,
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25 Commitments under operating leases

At 31 Avguest 2024 the total of the Trust’s future minimum lease payments
under mon-cancellable operating leases was:

2024 2023
Amounts due: £000 EDDD
Land and buildings
Within one year a5 12
Within two to five years 121 a7
Affter five years 15 i
in 83
Other
Within one year ES 138
Within two to five years 73 149
After flve years - -
1632 87
333 E L]
26 Reconciliation of net income/{expenditure) 1o net cash flow from operating activities
2024 2023
Nat incomef{expenditure) for the reporting period 2,521 {1,058}
Adjusted for:
Depreciation of tangible and intangible ficed assets 2,800 2,662
Repayment of borrowing 1 F.
Capital grants from DFE Group and other capital income {5,460) 12,.680)
Interest recaivable [148) [55)
Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions payable (971) 432
Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost/fincome) (468} (114)
Defined benefit pension scheme obligation inherited - .
Decrease/{increase] in stock 3 {3}
Decreasef{increase] in debtors (148} {701)
increase/[decrease) in creditors {219) (380)
Met cash inflow/{outflow) from operating activities (2,087} {1,895)
27 Cash flows from investing activities
2024 2023
E£000 £000
interest received from imeestments 148 55
Cash transferred to investments {5,165) 12,997
Cash transferred from investments 2,997 2,997
Purchase of tangible fixed assets [462]) i2,430)
Disposal of tangible fized assels 194 36
Capital grants fram DIE Group 1974 2,680
Met cash inflow/{outflow] from investing activities i1,309) (1,659)
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28 Cash flows from financing activities

024 2023

] E000

Repayment of borrowing (1) (2]

Met cash provided by [used in) financing activities {1} (21
29 Anahysis of eash and cash equiralents

2024 2023

£000 £000

Cash in kand and at bank 5,058 5,387

Motice deposits (bess than 3 months) 1,106 5.074

Total cash and cash eguivalents 7, Ded 10.461

30 Analysls of changes in net debt

Atl MNon- At 31

September Cash cash August

2023 flows changes 2024

£000 E000 E000 £

Cash 5,387 571 5,958

Cash equivalents 5074 (3.968) 1,106

10,461 (2,357) - 7,064

Loans falling due within one year (2) 1 (1) (2]

Loans falling due after mare than one year (2) - 1 (1)

Total 10,457 (2,396} 7061

31 Members’ Liability

Each Member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the event of it
being wound up while hefshe is a Member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a Member, such amount as
may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and llabilities contracted before hefshe ceates to be a Membir,

31 Agency arrangements

The Trust distributes 16-19 bursary funds 1o students as an agent for ESFA. In the accounting period ending 31 August
2024 the Trust received 69,045 (2023: £52,586) and disbursed £66,590 (2023: £49,326) from the fund. The trust
redeemed a 5% administration element in line with the ESFA regulations, of £3,461 (2023: £3,471). As at 31 August
2024, the cumulative unspent 16-19 bursary fund Is £70,920 [2023; £71,926), of which Enil (2023; £1,938) relates to

undistributed funding that is repayable to ESFA,
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33 Transfer of existing academies into the Trust

Value reported by Fair value Transfer in
5t Johns Primary Academy transferring trust adjustments recognised
at 1 January 2024 £000 EO00 £000
Tangible fixed assets

Leasahold land and buildings 2,983 - 2983

Computer eguipment 39 - 3

Furniture and equipment 459 - 459
Current assets

Stock - - -

Debtors due in less than one year 95 - 98

Cash in bank and in hand 296 - 206
Liabilities

Credivors dug in less than one year [147) . [147]
Pensions

Pension scheme deficit - - -
Met assets [ [liabilities) 3,726 . 3,786
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34 Pension and similar obligations

The Trust's employees belong to two princigal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension Scheme England and Wales
{TP3) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is
managed by Lincsdnshire County Council and Leicestershire County Council. Both are multi-employer defined-benefit
schemes.

The latest sctuadial valuation of the TPS related to the pericd ended 31 March 2020 and of the LGPS 31 March 2022,

Contributions amounting to £1,076,503 (2023: £879 418) were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2024 and are
Included within craditoss.

Teachars' Pension Schemea

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TP3) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the Teachers'
Pension Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for teachers in acadermy trusts. All teachers have the option to opt-
out of the TPS following enrolment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, a3 a percentage of salary
- these contributions are credited 1o the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension benefits are paid by public funds
provlded by Parliament.

Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS in accordance
with the Public Service Pensions [Valuations and Employer Cast Cap) Directions 2014 published by HM Treasury every 4
years, The dim of the review is to ensure scheme costs are recognised and managed appropriately and the review
specifies the level of future contributions,

Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions aboul the value of future costs, design of benefits and many
other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2020. The valuation report was
publizshed by the Department for Education on 27 October 2023, with the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, applying a notional
imvestment return based on 1.7% above the rate of CPL The key elements of the valuation outcome are:

« Employer contribution rates set at 28.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% adminkstration bewvy).
This is an increase of 5% in employer contributions and the cost controd result is such that no change in
member benefits is needed.

=  Total scheme liahilities (penslons currentdy in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for
service to the effective date of £262,000 million and notional assets (estimated future contributions
together with the notional investments hald at the valuation date) of £222, 200 million, giving a notional
past service deficit of £39,800 million

The result of this valuation will be implemented from 1 April 2024, The next valuation result is due to be implemented
fram 1 April 20748,

The employer's pensicn costs paid to TPS In the period amounted to £6,081,555% (2023: £5,054,249),
A copy of the valuation repart and supporting documentation is on the Teachers” Pensions website,
Under the definitions sat aul in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The Trust is unable o
identify its share of the underlying assets and EHabilities of the plan. Accordingly, the Trust has taken advantage of the

exermption bn FRS 102 and has accounted for its contributions to the scheme ag If it were a defined contribution scheme,
The Trust has set out above, the informatian avatlable on the scheme.
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34 Pension and similar abligations (continued)
Local Government Penslon Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-administered funds. The total
contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2024 was £4,105,393 (2023 £3,341,864}, of which employer’s
oontributions totalled £3,310,2%9 (2023 £2,641,547) and employess’ contributions totalled £795,095 (2023 £700,317).

The agreed contribution rates for future years for employers vary across academies and according to gross salares far
emphoyees,

Parfiament has agreed, at the reqguest of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the event of an
atademy trust dlosure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabidlities would be met by the Department for
Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013 and on 21 July 2022, the Department for Education reaffirmeed
its commitment bo the puarantes with a parliamentany minute published on GOV.UK,

Lincolnshire Pension Fund

[The Priary Academy LS5T, The Priory City of Lincoln Academy, The Pricry Ruskin Academy, The Priory Witham Acadermy,
The Priory Pembroke Academy, Ling Moor Primary Academy, Heighington Millfield Primary Academy, Huntingtower
Community Primary Academy, Waddington Redwood Primary Academy, Cherry Willingham Primary Academvy,
Willoughby Academy and 51 Johns Primary Academy),

PFrincipal actuarial assumptions
At 31 August At 31 August

204 2023

% par W per

aBnnum annum

Pension Increase Rate 2.75% 2.90%
AP inflation 3.05% 3.20%
Salary Increase Rate 3.75% 3.90%
Discount Rate 5.10% 5.230%

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements fn mortality rates. The assumed
life expectations on retirement age 65 are;

At 31 August At 31 August

2024 2023
Mo, Years No. Years
Retiring today

Males 19.5 19.5
Females 2.7 216

Retiring in 20 years
Malis 20.7 20.8
Females 24.1 24.0
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34 Pension and similar obligations [continued)

The sensitivities regarding the principal assumptions used to measure the present value of scheme obligations are set out

below:
Change in assumptions at 31 August 2024 £000 £000 £000
0.1% 0.0% -0.1%
Adjustrment to discount rate 38,316 359,099 39.905
Adjustment to long term salary increase 39,133 35,099 359,065
Adjustrvent to pension increases and deferred revaluation 10 289 39,009 g 331
+1 Year MNone -1 Year
Adjustment to life expectancy assumplions 40,177 39,099 38,060
The Trust’s share of the assets and liabilities of the scheme were:
Fair Fair
Value at Value at
31 August 31 August
2024 2023
£000 £000
Equities 27,193 24,502
Bonds 6,852 5217
Property 3,520 2947
Cach 1,652 1,355
Infrastructure 2,089 1,509
Absolute repurn fund 8,255 4,153
Total assets 49,601 39,683
Present value of scheme liabilities
- Funded (39,099 {32,781}
- Unfunded . .
SurplusfiDeficit] in the scheme 10,502 6,902

The actual return on the scheme assels in the year was a gain of £4,511,000 (2023; gain of £1,046,000].

Amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities Flipd | 2023
E000 E000

Current service cost (net of employee contributions) {2,223) {2.BED)
Past service cosls - =
Losses [ [gains) on curtailments and setthements . -
Interest incomie 2,265 1,618

Interest cost {1,809) {1,500}
Administration expenses (12} [39}
Total amount recognised in the SOFA (1,775) |2.800)
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34 Pension and similar obligations [continued)

Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations were as follows: 2024 2023
£000 E000
AL 1 Septembar 35,683 35407
Currisnt service cost 2,223 2 880
Past service cost - -
interest cost 1,809 1,500
Contributions by scheme participants Te0 6&7
Actuarial [gains)/losses 215 [6,775)
Liabilities assumed / [extinguished) on settlements 2,180 .
Losses on Curtailments . .
Estimated benefits paid {690} (897)
Pension ceiling adjustment 3411 6,902
At 31 August 49,601 39,6E3

Without the asset ceiling adjustment, there would be a net pension scheme asset of £10,313,000. In the opinion of
the Trustees, this asset cannot be realistically recovered from the pension scheme, either by direct payment or futwre
pension service contributions, hence an adjustrnent has been made (o remove the pension scheme net surplus.

Changes in the fair value of Trust's share of scheme assets: 024 2023
£000 £000
At 1 September 39,683 36,979
Expected return on scheme assets 2,265 1619
Actuarial gains/{losses) 2,246 {1,145}
Contributions by employer 3,159 2,499
Contributions by scheme participants Te0 B&7
Administration expenses (12] (39]
Sattlement prices recehved / (pald) 2,190 .
Benefits paid [E50) (2a7]
At 31 August 49,601 39,683
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34 Pension and similar obligations (continued)

Lelcestershire County Council Pension Fund

(The Priory Behair Academy)

Principal actuarial assumptions
At 31 August
2024
% per
AU
Pension Increase Rate 2.55%
Salary Increase Aate 3.15%
Discount Rale 5.00%

At 31 August
2023

% per
annum

2.95%
3.45%
5.20%

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates. The

assumed fife expectations on retirement age 65 are:

AR 31 August
2024
Mo. Years
Retiring today

Males 204
Females 4.8

Retiring in 20 years
Males 21.5
Females 25.7

At 31 August
2023

Mo, Years

205
248

21.5
2548

The sensitivities regarding the principal assurmptions used o measure the scheme liabilities are set out below:

Change in assumptions at 31 August 2024 Approximate % increase to Approximate monetary
Defined Benefit Obligation amount £000

0.1% decrease in Real Discount Rate 2% 53

1 year increase in member life expectancy 4% a1

0. 1% increase in the Salary Increase Rate 0%

0.1% Increate in the Pension Increase Rate (CP1) %
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34 Pension and similar obligations (continued)

Thie Trust's share of the assets and liabilities of the scheme wera:

Fair Fair

Value at Value at

31 August 31 August

2024 2023

£000 £000

Equities 1,350 1,283

Bands o909 765

Property 160 158

Cash 214 45

Tatal assats 4673 2,251
Present value of scheme Habllithes

- Funded [2,267) {2,028)

= Unfunded - .

Surplus/{Deficit) In the schame 406 713

The actual return on the scheme assets in the year was a gain of £370,000 (2023: loss of £4,000),

Armounts recognised in the Statement of Finandial Activities 2024 2023
EDOD £000
Current service cost [net of employee contributions) {104} [155)

Past sarvice costs
Losses { {galns) on curtailments and settlements

Interest income 171 92
Interest cost (109} (97)
Total amount recognised in the SOFA 192} {160}
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34 Pension and similar obligations [continued)

Changes In the present value of defined benefit obligations were as follows: 2024 2023

£000 E000
At 1 September 2038 217
Current servioe cosl 104 155
Past service cost - -
Interast cost 108 a7
Contributions by scheme participants 35 33
Actuarial [gains)/losses 15 (434)
Losses on Curtailments - -
Estimated benefits paid {34) E0]]
Pension ceiling adjustment 406 -
At 31 August 2,673 2,038

Without the asset ceiling adjustment, there would be a net pension scheme asset of £406,000, In the epinion of
the Trustees, this asset cannol be realistically recovered fram the pension scheme, either by direct payment or
future pension service contributions, hence an adjusiment has been made to remove the pension scheme net

surplus.

Changes in the fair value of Trust’s share of schame assets: 2024 2023
£000 £000
At 1 September 2,151 2,099
Expected return on scheme assets 121 a2
Actuarial gains/{losses) 149 (26)
Contributions by employer 151 143
Contributions by scheme participants 35 33
Benefits pald [34) (%0)
Ar 31 August 2,673 2,251
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